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To the Shareholder of

Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company {hereinafter
- Biosintez PJSC), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, statement of financial results,
supplements to the balance sheet and the statement of financial results, including the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Biosintez
PJSC as at 31 December 2019, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Russian accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the audited entity in accordance with the Rules of
Independence of the Auditors and Audit Organizations and The Code of Professional Ethics of the Auditors,
which are in accordance with International Ethics Standards Beard for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have
fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Responsibilities of Management and Members of the Board of Directors for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsiple for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Russian accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Members of the Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.

Biosintez PJSC
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepiicism throughout the audit. We also:

a) identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting frem fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissicns, misrepresentations, or the override of infernal control.

b) obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’'s internal control.

¢} evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence ohtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’'s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease o continue as a going concern.

e} evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in &
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with members of the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Engagement partner on the audit L.A. Panfilova
resulting in this independent Audit qualification ceriificate dated 18 April 2005
auditor's report No. K 022777, registration number 22006035483

Date of the independent auditor’s report: 25 March 2020
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Audited entity

Name:

Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company (Biosintez
PJSC).

Address of the legal entity within its location:
4 Druzhby St, Penza, 440033, Russian Federation.

State registration:

Registered by the Administration of the
Zheleznodorozhny District of Penza on 26 November
1992. Resolution No. 114,

The registration entry was made in the Unified State
Register of Legal Entities on 11 September 2002
under primary state registration number (OGRN)
1025801102502,

Biosintez PJSC
Independent Auditor's Report

Auditor

Name:
FBK, LLC.
Address of the legal entity within its focation:

4411 Myasnitskaya St, Bldg 2AB, Moscow, 101890,
Russian Federation.

State registration:

Registered by the Moscow Registration Chamber on
15 November 1893, registration number 484.583.

The registration entry was made in the Unified State
Register of Legal Entities on 24 July 2002 under
primary state registration number 1627700058286.

Wiembership in a self-regulatory organization of
auditors:

Member of the Self-regulatory organization of
auditors Association "Sodruzhestvo™.

Primary number of registration entry in the register of
auditors and audit organizations of the self-
regulatory organization of auditors 11506030481.

TRANSLATION NOTE: Our report has been prepared in Russian and in English. in all matters of interpretation

of information, views or opinions, the Russtan version of our report takes precedence over the English version,
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Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 20 19 Ceodes
- == Farm on OKUD 0710001
Date (day, manth, year) 31 12 ] 2018
Entity Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company OKPO 00480550
Taxpayer identification number INN 5834001025
Type of activity
drug manufacturing QOKVED 2 21.20.1
Legal form/property form
PJSC/private ownership OKOPF/CKFS 12247 16
Measurement unit: thousand RUB OKE} 384
Location (address) 4 Druzhby St Penza, 440033
The financial statements are subject to staiutory audit m YES D NC
Name of the audit firm/
Full name of the individual auditor
FBK, LLC
Taxpayer identification numbar INN | 7701017140
of the audit firm/individual auditor
Principal state registration OGRN/OGRNIP { 1027700058286
number of the audit firm/ndividual auditor
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
Note Narrative Code 20 19 20 18 20 17
ASSETS
i NON-CURRENT ASSETS
4.1, Intangible assets 1110 1897 2200 2 508
3:4.2:4.4 | Research and development results 1120 26 658 41 040 44 722
including:
4.2, Research and development resulls put info operation 1121 4918 5791 8 953
4.4, R&D and intangible assels acquisition in progress 1122 21742 35249 40 769
Intangible exploration assets 1130 - - -
Tangible exploration assets 1140 - - -
34344 | Fixed assets 1150 2197 460 2 251 810 2088 715
including:
4.3. Fixed assels pul info cperation 1151 2071632 2 148 459 1776398
4.4, In-progress capital investments in fixed assels 1152 125 828 105 351 310 317
Income-bearing investments in tangible assets 1160 - - -
4.5, Financial investments 1170 2000 2000 2 00C
46. Deferred tax assets 1480 187 142 226 694 162 006
4.7. Other non-current assets 1190 20 921 15 809 14704
Total Section | 1100 2 436 078 2 539553 2 317 655
Il. CURRENT ASSETS
4.8. Inveniories 1210 B71 046 538 344 637 119
including:
raw maferials, consumables and other similar assets 1211 441 404 372 357 360 374
work in progress costs 1212 62 050 71893 63 048
finished producis and goods for resale 1213 364 919 92 226 211430
other inventories and costs 1214 2673 1768 1367
Input value-added tax 1220 11204 14 174 12 319
34.9. Accounts receivable 1230 830 300 804 742 1082 095
including:
Accounts receivable (expected fo be repaid beyond 12
months after the reporting date) 1231 5619 5570 76 806
Accounis receivable (expected to be repaid within 12
months after the reporting date) 1232 824 681 799 172 1015 289
Financial investmenis (excluding cash eguivalenis) 1240 - - -
4,10. Cash and cash equivalenis 1250 25 312 123 160 123 322
including:
deposit 1251 - 100 00O -
4.11. Other current assets 1260 44 44 37
Totat Section 1| 1200 1 737 906 1480 464 1 864 B2
BALANCE 1600 4173 984 4 020 017 4 182 547




Form 0710001 p.

Note Narrative Code As azio 3:;1 December As 21210 1831 December As a;o 1731 Decamber
LIABILITIES
lit. EQUITY AND RESERVES
4.12. Share capital 1310 286 286 286
QOwn shares buy-back 1320 §( - )| ( - MK - )
4.13. Revaiuation of non-current assets 1340 289 893 287 120 298 605
Additional capital (without revaluation) 1350 - - -
4.14. Reserve capital 1360 14 14 14
4.15. Retained earnings (uncovered ioss) 1370 | ¢ 97 084 3 € 87 287 } 356 19¢
Totai Section li 1360 193 108 210 133 655 085
IV. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
4.17. Borrewings 1410 2 380 430 3 295 856 1960 481
4.18 Deferred fex fiabilities 1420 124 689 113 673 105 068
Estimated liabilities 1430 - - -
Cther liabilities 1450 37 912 - -
Total Section IV 1400 2 543 031 3 409 929 2 065 559
V. SHORT-TERM 1.IABILITIES
4.17. Borrowings 1510 1 143 492 75 062 1192 461
3:4.18. Accounts payabie 1520 183 152 168 321 106 333
inciuding:
3 suppliers and contractors 1521 158 039 88 257 36 134
payables to company employees 1522 15 524 15 176 15 329
payabies fo stafe non-budgetary funds 1523 5322 8 980 1237
charge and fax payables 1524 10 194 12 324 13978
advances received 1525 3 366 1088 2 652
offter credifors 1526 707 42 486 37 003
Deferred income 1530 2134 2137 2217
2;4.20. Estimaied labilities 1540 99 066 154 435 160 882
Cther liabilities 1550 - - -
Total Seciion V 1500 1437 B44 399 955 1 461 893
BALANCE 1700 £ 173 984 4020 017 4 182 547
General Director D.V. Boldov Chief Accountant T.Y. Tefanova
(signature) {printed name} {signature}) {printed name)
20 March 20 20




Entity

Statement of Financial Results
20 18

for the year

Form on OKUD

Date (day, month, year)

Taxpayer identification number

Type of activity

Legal form/property form

Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company OKPO

INN

Drug manufacturing OKVED 2
PJSC / private

OKGCPF/OKFS

OKE!

Measurement unit; thousand RUB

Codes

C710002

31 | 12 | 2019

00480650

5834001025

21.20.1

12247 16

384

for the year

for the year

Note Narrative Code 20 19 20 18
5.1, Revenue 2110 2 424 556 2 085294
inciuding from the sale of own-produced medical
products 2111 2395138 2 053518
5.2. Cosi of sales 21209 ( 1746 073 ) 1678197 )
including from the safe of own-produced medical
products 2121} ( 1728 496 ) 1661135 )
Gross profit (loss) 2100 678 483 407 097
52 Selling expenses 22104 ( 115 458 ) 137 451 )
52. Administrative expenses 22201 { 281 371 ) 287 666 )
Sales profit (loss) 2200 281 654 18 020 )
income from participation in other entities 2310 - -
interest receivable 2320 6225 4 675
Interest payable 2330 ( 237 378 } 231 466 )
3:5.3. Other income 2340 136 210 37 728
3:5.3. Other expenses 2350 ( 138 200 ) 292 931 )
Profit (loss) beiore tax 2300 48 511 500 013 ]
54. Current income tax 2410} { 15102 ) - )
54. including permanent tax liabilities {assets) 2421 55 651 40 090
54. Changes in deferred tax liabilities 24304 ( 10 698 ) 8 858 )
54. Changes in deferred tax assets 24504 ( 39 552 ) 68 654
Other 24801 ( 183 ) 4745 )
5.5, Net profit (loss) 24007 ( 17 024 ) 444 962 )




Form 0710002 p.2

for the year for the year
Note Narrative Code 20 19 20 18
FOR REFERENCE
Result of revaluation of non-current assets not
included to the net profit (loss) for the period 2510 - -
Result of other transactions not included to the
net profit (ioss) for the period 25201 ( YEH{ )
Cumulative financial result for the period 25001 ( 17 024 Vi 444 962 )
5.5. Basic earnings (loss) per share 2900] ( - Y1 ¢ 2 )
5.5. Diluted earnings (loss) per share 2910¢ ( - )i 2 )
General Director D.V. Boldov Chief Accountani T.Y. Tefanova
(signature) (printed name) (slgnature) (printed name)

20 March 20 ﬂ
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the year 2019 Codes
Form on OKUD 0710005
Date (day, month, year) | 31 I 12 I 2019
Entity Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company OKPO 00480550
Taxpayer identification number INN 5834001025
Type of activity drug manufacturing OKVED 2 21.20.1
Legat form/property form PJsSC
private ownership OKOPF/QOKFS 12247 16
Measurement unit; thousand RUB OKEI 384
for  the year for the year
Narrative Code 20 19 20 48
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts — total 4110 2 460 282 2277 757
including:
sales of products, goods, works and services 4111 2 366 057 2 059 094
rent payments, licence payments, royalties, commissions and other
payments ) 4112 1697 903
resale of financial investments 4113 - -
other receipts 4119 92 528 217 760
Including other receipts from related companies {Sun Pharma
(Netherlands} B.V.} 41191 - 203 971
Payments — total 4120 J( 2 529 606 Y[{ 2162094
including:
to suppliers for raw materials, works, services 4121 {{ 1756 634 yl{ 1427819
wages and salaries 4122 | ( 546 035 Y1 ¢ 530649
interest on horrowings 4123 | ( 134 305 )| 125 348
including interest on borrowings fowards refated parfies (Sun Pharma
(Netherlands) B.V.) 412317 |{ 134 194 I 125 348
income tax 4124 |( 17 635 Y ( -
other payments 4129 §{ 74 997 K 78 278
Net cash flows from operating activities 4100 {{ 69 324 ) 115 663




Form 0710005 p.2

for  the year

for the year

Narrative Code 20 19 20 18

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts — tofal 4210 1563 0
including:
from sales of non-current assets (except for financial investments) 4211 1563 -
from sales of shares of other entities (ownership interest) 4212 - -
from return of loans issued, sales of debt securities {rights of claiming
cash from third parties) 4213 - -
dividends, inierest on debt financial investments and receipts from
participation in other entities 4214 - -
other receipts 4219 - -
Payments - total 4220 J{ 98 074 { 236769 )
including:
acquisition, construction, modernisation, reconstruction and
preparation for the use of non-current assets 4221 | ( 96 891 ( 238769 )
acquisition of other entities shares {(ownership interest) 4222 }( - { - )
acquisition of debt securities {rights of claiming cash from third
parties), issue of loans to third parties 4223 §( - { - )
borrowing costs included in the cost of the investment asset 4224 §( 1183 ( - )
including borrowing costs included in the cost of the investment asset
in respect of borrowings from related companies (Sun Pharma
(Netherfands) B.V.) 42241 §{ 1183 { - }
other payments 4228 | ( - ( - )
Net cash flows from investing activities 4200 |{ 96 511 { 236 769 )

Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts — total 4310 1 190 000 120 000
including:
borrowings 4311 1190 000 120 000
including borrowings from related companies (Sun Pharma
{Netheriands) B.V.) 43111 60 000 120 000
contributions of owners (members) 4312 - -
issue of shares, increase in ownership interest 4313 - -
issue of bonds, promissory notes and other debt securities, etc. 4314 - -
other receipts 4319 - -




Form 0710005 p.3

for  the year for the year
Narrative Code 20 19 20 18

Payments - total 4320 |{ 1121 270 - }

including:

to owners (members) due to the fact of share buy-back or cessation

of membership 4321 | ( - - )

dividend payments or other distribution of profit to owners (members) | 4322 | - - )

redemption (buy-back) of promissory notes and other debt securities,

loan repayment 4323 | ( 1121270 - )

including repayment of loans from related companies {Sun Pharma

(Netherlands) B.V.) 432311 ( 1081 270 - )

other payments 4329 | ( - - )

Met cash flows from financing activities 4300 68 730 120 000

Net cash flows for the reporting period 4400 {( 97 105 1 106 }

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting

period 4450 123 160 123 322

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 4500 25 312 123 160

Effect of changes in the Russian ruble exchange rate 4490 | ( 743 944
Genera!l Director D.V. Boldov Chief Accountant T.Y. Tefanova

{signature} {printed name)
{signature) (printed name)
20 March 20 20
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

{(in thousand Russian Rubles unless ptherwise stated)
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These notes form an integral part of the 2019 financial statements of Biosintez PJSC (the “Company”)
prepared in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation.

1. Basic information

1.1. General information

Biosintez Public Joint Stock Company (the Company), abbreviated as Biosintez PJSC,
INN/KPP 5834001025/583401001, was registered on 26 November 1992 by the Administration of the
Zheleznodorozhny District of Penza, Resolution No. 414.
The registration entry was made in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities by Inspectorate of the Ministry
of Taxes and Levies for the Zheleznodorazhny District of Penza on 11 September 2002 under primary

registration number 1025801102502.
Registered and mail address: 4 Druzhby St., Penza, 440033, Russian Federation.

The Company's headcount:

As at 31/12/2017

As at 31/12/2018

As at 31/12/2018

15673

1340

1201

1.2.Basic activities

in 2018-2018, the Company was engaged in the following economic activities:

1.

o oo A w N

Prug manufacturing;

Pharmaceutical substance manufacturing;

Transport services;

Sales of electricity on the wholesale market;

Other services;

Lease of property.

The Company operated under the following licences:

No. Type of activity Licensing authority Date of issue tsei;:\ez} ?#g;?;na‘sr;d
Licence to circulate narcotics, Federal Service for 1611172017 $©C-99-03-000304,
1 psychotropic substances and their Supervision of for an unfimited
precursors, and cultivate drug- Healthcare term
yielding plants
Licence for the use of explosive and Federal Service for 29/06/2016 BX-50-014598, for
2 chemically hazardous production Ecological, Technological an unkmited term
facilities of hazard categories |, 1 and | and Afomic Supervision
Il
Licence for the instaliation, Ministry of the Russian 01/11/2008 58-B/00007, for an
maintenance and repair of fire safety | Federation for Civil unlimited term
3 devices of buildings and structures Defence, Emergencies
and Elimination of
Conseguences of Natural
Disasters
Licence for medical activities Ministry of Healthcare of | 16/09/2015 No. Jt0-58-01-
4 the Penza Region 001831, for an
unlimited term

Page 4 of 62



Biosintez PJSC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
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No. Type of activity Licensing authority Date of issue tseer:-:)ez} rt':;?:;nir;d
Licence for drug manufaciuring Ministry of Industry and 18/08/2017 No. 00290-11C, for
5 activities Trade of the Russian an unfimited term
Federation
Licence for the use of infectious Office of the Russian 21/02/2017 No.
agents (unless this activity is Federal Service for 58.02.02.001./1.000
performed for medical purposes) and | Surveiilance on 001.02.17, for an
6 genetically modified organisms of Consumer Rights unlimited term
potential hazard grades 3-4 in closed | Protection and Human
systems Wellbeing for the Penza
Region
Licence for bus transportation of Ministry of Transport of 19/04/2019 No. AH-58-000144,
passengers and other persons the Russian Federation, for an unlimited term
7 Federal Service for
Supervision in the
Sphere of Transport

1.3.Branches and representative offices

Biosintez PJSC has no branches or representative offices.

1.4. Authorized {share) capital structure, key shareholders (members)

The share capital of the Company, according to the Articles of Association, makes up RUB 286,283 as at

31/12/2018.

The Company’s share capital is divided into:

o 214,712 ordinary personal uncertificated shares, each with the nominal value of RUB 1;

o 71,571 preferred personal uncertificated shares, each with the nominal value of RUB 1.

The Company’s shareholders (members) as at 31 December 2019:

Narrative Number of shares P'artlcipatlon
: interest, %
SUN PHARMA (Netherlands) B.V. 286,283 100.0
Totak: 286,283 100
The Company's sharehclders (members) as at 31 December 2018:
. Participation
Narrative Number of shares interer.:st, o
SUN PHARMA (Netherlands) B.V. 243627 85.1
Heumann Pharma GmbH & Co. Generika KG, Germany 29,608 10.3
Other shareholders - legal entities 5,635 1.9
Other shareholders - individuats 7,613 2.7
Total: 286,283 100
The Company's shareholders (members) as at 31 December 2017:
Narrative Number of shares Participation
interest, %
SUN PHARMA (Nethertands) B.V. 243627 85.1
Heumann Pharma GmbH & Co. Generika KG, Germany 29,508 10.3
Other shareholders - legal entifies 5,270 1.8
Other shareholders - individuals 7,878 2.8
Total: 286,283 100
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1.5. Governance bodies

The General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest governance body of the Company.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall management of the Company, except for the issues in
sole competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors consists of 5 persons as at 31 December 2019:

No. Fuil name Position

1 Arun Kumar Rajput E&?;r:ll;;irg?giaisﬁzﬁogtoj érglg):fsgxr;ent, Business Development and
2 Arvind Kumar Head of M&A at Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd

3 Vivek Mittal General Manager for M&A at Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
4 Arvind Abrol Director of the Department, Finance Division, at JSC Ranbaxy

5 Alexander Voloshinov Senior Lawyer at JSC Ranbaxy

The sole executive body of the Company {the General Director) acting on the basis of the Company's Articles
of Association administers the Company's day-fo-day operations.

Dmitry Boldov is the General Director of the Company.
According to the Articles of Association, the remit of the sole executive body includes all matters associated

with the managing of current activities of the Company, except for the issues referred to the remit of the Board
of Directors.

1.6. Information abouf the management bodies

The Company's internal audit committee as at 31 December 2019:

o Full name Position
. Chief Accountant at JSC Ranbaxy, Deputy Chief Accountant at
| L.A. Manuilova Biosintez PJSC
5 | Y.V Khivantseva Director for Personnel, Administration and Training in Russia at JSC
Ranhaxy
3 | AA. Gorshenin Head of the Legal Department at Biosintez PJSC

1.7.Information about the registrar and the auditor

JSC Reestr located at 20/1 Bolshoy Balkansky Per., Moscow, licence No. 10 — 000 — 1 -~ 00254 dated
13/09/2002, was the Company's registrar in the reporting year.

Regional branch in Penza: 47 Volodarskogo St., Penza

FBK, LLC located at 44/1, bldg 2AB, Myasnitskaya Street, Moscow, 101990 is the Company's auditor.

FBK, LLC is a member of the Self-regulatory organization of auditors Association "Sodruzhestvo” (SRO AAS).
Number in the register of self-regulatory organization of auditors: Certificate of membership in the self-
regulatory organization of auditors Association "Sodruzhestvo” No. 7198, number in the register -
11506030481.
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1.8.Subsidiaries and associates

Biosintez PJSC has no subsidiaries or associates.

2. Basis of presentation

2.1.Basis of presentation

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the applicable legislation
of the Russian Federation.

The Company keeps accounting records in compliance with the requirements of Federal Law dated 6
December 2015 No.402-FZ “On Accounting”, Russian Accounting Regulations approved by Orders of the
Russian Ministry of Finance, and other laws and regulations of the Russian Federation applicable to
accounting.

The accounting policies for 2018 were approved by the General Director’s order No. 2203 dated 29 December
2017.

The Company's accounting policies rely on the following basic assumptions:

o assets and liabilities of the Company are separated from assets and liabilities of the Company's
owner and assets and liabilities of other entities (separate entity assumption);

e the Company will continue its operations for the foreseeable future and has no intention or need to
be liquidated or to cease operations and, therefore, liabilities will be discharged in accordance with
the established procedure (going concern assumption);

» the accounting policies in place are applied consistently from one reporting period to another
(accaunting confinuity assumption);

s economic events of the Company are related fo the reporting period (and are therefore recognised
in accounting records) when they actually took place without reference to the time of actual receipt
or payment of cash connected with these events (accrual principle assumption).

The Company's accounting policies provide for the observance of the requirements of completeness,
prudence, substance over form, consistency and rationality.

2.2. Correction of errors in accounting records and financial statements

The rules for correcting errors and disclosing information about errors in accounting and reporting of
organizations that are legal entities under the laws of the Russian Federation (except for credit institutions
and state (municipal) institutions (hereinafter referred to as "entities”) are set forth by RAR 22/2010
“Correction of Errors in Accounting and Reporting” approved by Order of the Russian Ministry of Finance No.
63n dated 28 June 2010.

An error is deemed material, if, individually or in the aggregate with other errors for the same reporting period,
it can influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements for this
reporting period. An entity determines whether an error is material or not based on both the amount of error
and the type of affected item(s) in the financial statements.

Identified errors and their implications are subject to mandatory correction.

An error of the reporting year, revealed before the end of this year, is corrected by entries in the corresponding
accounts in the moenth of the reporting year when the error was detected.

An error of the reporting year revealed after the end of this year, but before the date of signing of the financial
statements for this year, is corrected by entries in the corresponding accounts for December of the reporting
year (the year for which the annual financial statements are prepared).

A significant error of the previous reporting year, revealed after the date of signing of the financial statements
for this year, but before the date of submission of such statements to shareholders of a joint-stock company,
members of a limited liability company, a state authority, a local government or other body authorised to
exercise the owner's rights, etc., shall be corrected according to the procedure provided for by clause & of

Page 7 of 62

[y



Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles upless otherwise stated)

this Regulation. If the specified financial statements were submitied to any other users, it should be repliaced
with the financial statements in which the revealed significant error is corrected (the restated financial
statements).

A significant error of the previous reporting year, revealed after the presentation of the financial statements
for this year to shareholders of a joint-stock company, members of a limited liability company, a state
authority, a local government or other body authorized to exercise the owner's rights, etc., but hefore the
approval date of such statements in accordance with the procedure established by the legislation of the
Russian Federation, shall be corrected in the manner prescribed by clause 6 of RAR 22/2010. At the same
time, the restated financial statements disclose information that these financial statements replace initialty
presented financial statements, as welf as grounds for the preparation of the restated financial statements.

The restated financial statements must be sent to all addresses to which the original financial statements
were sent.

The Company discloses the following information about material errors relating to the previous reporting
periods which were corrected in the current reporting peried in the notes to the annual financial statements:

1) nature of an error;

2) amount of restatement for each item of the financial statements for each preceding reporting period to the
extent practicable;

3) amount of restatement for basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share;
&) amount of restatement for the opening balance of the earliest comparative period presented.

The influence of corrected errors on the numerical indicators in the financial statements is shown in Section
3 of these Notes.

2.3. Effect of changes in accounting policies

There were no significant amendments in the accounting policies for 2019 as compared to 2018 which could
have affected the Company’s financial statements.

2.4. Accounting system and accounting procedures

The Accounting Department headed by the Chief Accountant is responsible for accounting at Biosintez PJSC.
The bookkeeping and accounting is automated by:

s Parus-enterprise software that brings activities of all departments into the single information space;

e 1C: Salary and Personnel Administration soitware for payroll management.

2.5.Stocktaking of assets and liabilities

The procedure for stocktaking of assets and liabilities and reflection of its findings in the financial statements
is stipulated in the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation approved by Order
No. 34n dd. 29 July 1998 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation as well as by the Guidelines
for Stocktaking of Assets and Financial Liabilities approved by order No. 49 dd. 13 June 1985 of the Ministry
of Finance of the Russian Federation,

Stocktaking of fixed assets is carried out once in three years under the Company’s Accounting Policies. The
previous stocktaking of fixed assets was carried out in 2018.

2.6. Accounting for assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for and translated to the currency of
the Russian Federation — Russian rubles — in compliance with the requirements of Russian Accounting
Regulation “Accounting for Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currency” (RAR 3/2006) as
approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 154n dated 27 November 2008,

The exchange rates set by the Central Bank of Russia as at the reporting date are given below:
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Exchange rate as at Exchange rate as at
Currency Exchange rate as at 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 211202017
ush 61.9057 69.4706 57.6202
EUR 68.3406 79.4605 68.8668

2.7, Intangible assets

To account for assets as intangible assets, the Company applies criteria stipulated in Russian Accounting
Regulation "Accounting for Intangible Assets” (RAR 14/2007} approved by order No. 153n dd. 27 December
2007 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation.

Measurement
intangible assets are recognised at.

s actual acquisition costs and the costs of making such assets suitable for use;

e actual costs of producing an intangible asset by the Company using its own resources.
No revaluation of intangible assets was made in 2018 and 2019.

The useful life of an intangible asset is revised on an annual basis. !f there is a significant change aver a
period during which the entity intends to use the asset, its useful life is to be adjusted. The respective
adjustments, if any, are recognised in accounting records and financial statements as changes in accounting
estimates. '

As concerns an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, the entity considers whether there are factors
showing inability to reliably determine the useful life of such asset. If such factors cease to exist, the entity
revises the usefus life of such intangible asset and the amortisation method used. The respective adjustments,
if any, are recognised in accounting records and financial statements as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortisation method of an intangible asset is revised on an annual basis. Should the expected economic
benefit from the use of an intangible asset change significantly, the amortisation method should be changed
accordingly. The respective adjustments, if any, are recognised in accounting records and financial
statements as changes in accounting estimates.

intangible assets are shown in the Balance Sheet less accrued amortisation.
Amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets is accrued monthly on a straight-line basis.

The company selects an amortisation method for an intangible asset based on the expected economic
benefits from its use, including the financial result from a possible sale of the said asset. In case the
expectations of economic benefits from the use of the intangible asset are not reliable, amortisation charges
for such asset are determined on a straight-line basis.

When applying the straight-line method, monthly amertisation is calculated

based on the actual (historical) cost of an intangible asset during its whole useful fife.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined on the basis of:

= validity period of the entity's rights to intellectual property or brand identity and the period of its control
over such asset;

o anexpected period of using the asset during which the entity intends to gain economic benefits.

The useful lives of intangible assets are determined and revised by the Commission based on the order of
the General Director.
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2.8.Research and development results

Scientific and research, design and experimental and technological expenses are incurred by the Company
in accordance with Russian Accounting Regulation “Accounting for Scientific and Research, Design and
Experimental and Technological Expenses” (RAR 17/02) approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of the
Russian Federation No, 115n dated 18 November 2002.

Scientific and research works are connected to scientific and experimental works as determined by Federal
Law No. 127-FZ dated 23 August 1996 “On Science and State Scientific Policy”.

Expenses for each scientific work are written off on a straight-line basis.

The Company independently determines the period over which R&D expenses are written off based on the
expected period of use of the R&D results during which the Company can enjoy economic benefits {income}.

2.9. Fixed assets

The Company initially recognises fixed assets in accordance with the criteria specified in Russian Accounting
Regulation “Accounting for Fixed Assets” (RAR 6/01) approved by Order of the Russian Ministry of Finance
No. 26n dated 30 March 2001, namely:

a) an asset is meant to be used in production, performance of works or services, for management
needs or given out for temporary possession and use or for temporary use for a fee;

b) an asset will be used during a long period of time, i.e. a period exceeding 12 months or a normal
operating cycle if it exceeds 12 months;

¢} an asset is not supposed to be later resold;

d) an asset is able to bring economic benefits {income) in the future.
Assets which meet the above-said criteria and cost no more than RUB 40 thousand per unit are reflected in
accounting records and financial statements as inventories. In order to ensure safety of these assets during
manufacturing or in operation, off-balance sheet (guantitative} accounting is carried out.

Real estate objects taken into operation and actually used regardless of documentary evidence of filing of
documents for registration of rights to real estate and obtaining such rights are taken into account as fixed
assets.

Fixed assets are reflected in the Balance Sheet at their replacement cost less accrued depreciation.

Title to land piots

Land plots the fitle to which has been registered are reflected as fixed assets. No depreciation is accrued on
such assets.

Certain land plots on which the Company's branches are located are leased.

Measurement of fixed assets at recognition

The historical cost of purchased fixed assets is treated as the actual amount of construction and acquisition
expenses, net of refundable taxes.

Expenses (interest) on loans and borrowings raised for acquisition or creation of investment assets are
inciuded into the cost of the investment assets. investment assets include construction in progress which will
be further recognised as fixed assets,

Subsequent measurement

The historical cost of fixed assets is subject to amendment in case of completion, additional equipment,
reconstruction, upgrading, partial liquidation and revatuation of fixed assets.

The Company does not perform revaluation of fixed assets.

Depreciation
Depreciation is accrued using the following methods:

e proportional to the output - for production fines {66 items),
s straight-line method - for other fixed assets.

The Company's commission decides which method to apply during the whole useful life.
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Annual depreciation charges are calculated as foliows:

e straight-line method - based on the historical or current (replacement) cost (in case of revaluation) of
a fixed asset and the depreciation rate calculated based on the asset's useful life;

e proportional to the output - depreciation is based on the output in the reporting period and the ratio
of the historical cost of a fixed asset and expected output for the whole useful life.

During the reporting year, the depreciation charges for fixed assets were accrued on a monthly basis,
irrespective of the applied method of accrual, in an amount of 1/12 of the annual charge.

Used fixed assets bought by the Company are depreciated using the straight-line method based on the net
book value of the assets and the remaining useful lives.

The useful life of a fixed asset is determined by the Company at its recognition for accounting purposes.

For fixed assets entered in books before 1 January 2002, the Company applies useful lives based on the
depreciation rates approved by Resolution No. 1072 of the Council of Ministers of the USSR dated 22 October
1890.

For fixed assets entered in books after 1 January 2002, the Company applies useful lives approved by
Regulation of the Government of the Russian Federation No. 1 dated 1 January 2002.

The useful lives accepted by the Company for groups of fixed assets are as follows.

Group of fixed assets Useful lives {number of years) of assets recognised
before 01/01/2002 after 01/01/2002
Buildings 10-125 15-83
Structures 15-50 7-20
Transfer devices 12-50 5-20
Machinery and equipment 2-30 1-30
Transpori vehicles 5-16 4-10
Production and maintenance fools 5-30 3-25

Disposal of fixed assels

Income and expenses from the sale or disposal of fixed assets are to be included in other income and
expenses in the Company’s Statement of Financial Results.

Mainienance and repair costs

The costs of repair and maintenance are recognised when incurred. Actual costs associated with current and
extraordinary repairs of fixed assets are included in the cost of products (works, services) upon completion
of works.

2.10. Construction in progress

In accordance with the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation approved by the
Ministry of Finance of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 34n dated 29 July 1998, in-
progress capital investments are expenses for the construction and erection works, acquisition of buildings,
equipment, vehicles, tools, instruments, other long use tangible assets, other capital works and expenses
(design, exploration, drilling works, land allotment expenses etc.).

In-progress capital investments are reflected in the balance sheet at the actual costs incurred by the
organisation.

Expenses for “idle mode” commissioning activities to make assets ready for use carried out before assets
are approved by the working commission are recognised as capital investments on account 08.

Expenses directly connected with "under pressure” commissioning activities are recognised as capitat
investments on account 08 if:

o they are provided by the design estimate documentation and the technological process and were
not incurred for trial production;

= they were incurred before the working commission approves the asset and before KC-14 and OC-1
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certificates are issued.

If any of the above conditions are not met, expenses for “under pressure” commissioning activities are
recognised on expense accounts and included in the cost of products.

2.11. Financial investments

in accordance with the requirements of Russian Accounting Regulation “"Accounting for Financial
investments” (RAR 19/02) approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 126n
dated 10 December 2002, financial investments should be presented in financial statements as short-term or
long-term depending on their maturity.

It is necessary to provide information about cash equivalents and financial investments acquired for resale in
the near term, for example;

In accordance with clause 5 of Russian Accounting Regulation “Statement of Cash Flows" (RAR 23/2011)
approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 11n dated 2 February 2011, cash
equivalents are highly liquid financial investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value: cali deposits, promissory notes of OJSC Sberbank Russia, OJSC Bank
VTB, OJSC Gazprombank, OJSC Gazprom acguired to make seftlements within 3 months after their
acquisition.

In accordance with clause 9 sub-clause 3) of Russian Accounting Regulation “Statement of Cash Flows™
(RAR 23/2011) approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation by Order No. 11n
dated 2 February 2011, financial investments acquired for resale in the near term comprise financial
investments that are sold or settled within 3 months after their acquisition, except for financial investments
tfreated as cash equivalents.

Financial investments are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of Russian Accounting
Regulation “Accounting for Financial Investments” (RAR 19/02) approved by Order of the Russian Ministry
of Finance No. 126n dated 10 December 2002.

The Company excludes from financial investments:

s interest-free promissory notes of Russian banks. Such assets are treated as cash equivalents on a
separate sub-account fo account 76 (absent in the reporting and comparative periods);

o interest-free promissory notes and issued interest-free loans are recognised as other accounts
recefvable and treated on separate sub-accounts to accounts 73 and 76.

e promissory notes issued by buyers of the Company’s goods, work or services and received by the
Company from the issuer in settlement for these goods, works or services. Such assets are presented
in accounting records and financial statements as trade receivables secured with promissory notes
received and treated on a separate sub-account to account 62 (absent in the reporting and
comparative periods);

= acquired accounts receivable that cannot bring proceeds to the Company. Such assets are treated
as other accounts receivable on a separate sub-account to account 76 {absent in the reporting and
comparalive periods}.

Financial investments are carried at cost. The classification of financial investments as long-term or short-
term is based on the Company's intentions regarding their further use and contractual terms.

Upon the disposal of an asset recognised as a financial investment the current market value of which cannot
be determined, its cost is determined on the basis of the historical cost of each financial investment in the
pooks.

In line with the amendments to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation
No. 34n and aiso in accordance with RAR 21/2008 “Changes in Accounting Estimates” approved by Order
of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 106n dated 6 October 2008, provisions for
impairment of financial investments, as well as other provisions refer to estimated provisions.

When deciding whether to establish a provision for impairment of financial investments, the Company
assesses not only the current situation, but also possible future economic benefits from further ownership of
such financial investment.

Impairment of financial investments is assessed based on the financial statements of the counterparty/market
value of such asset for at ieast two reporting periods.
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Highly liquid deposits with three-month maturity or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and are only exposed to an insignificant risk of changes in value are treated in B/S line "Cash and cash
equivalents”.

2.12. Inventories

Inventories are accounted for in accordance with Russian Accounting Regulation “Accounting for Inventories”
(RAR 5/01) approved by order No. 44n dated 9 June 2001 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian
Federation.

Inventories are accounted for at their actual cost. The actual cost of inventories acquired for consideration is
the amount of actual expenses for acquisition less value added-tax and other refundable taxes.

Inventories when issued to production or disposed of are measured at unit cost.
Special clothing, irrespective of its useful life, is reported within current assets.

Inventories pledged according to RAR 8/2010 "Estimated Liabilities, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” are contingent liabilities which have to be disclosed in section 4.20 hereof, based on the quantity and
the cost as of the reporting date as per the accounting records.

In line with the amendments to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation
No. 34n and also in accordance with RAR 21/2008 “Changes in Accounting Estimates” approved by Order
of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 106n dated 6 October 2008, inventory impairment
provisions, as weil as other provisions refer to estimated provisions.

inventories that are obsolete, or have lost their original quality in full or in part, or the current market value (or
sales value) of which has reduced, are shown in the balance sheet as of the end of the reporting year less
inventory impairment provision. The inventory impairment provision is formed against profit or loss of the
company in the amount of the difference between the current market value and the actual cost of inventories,
provided that the latter exceeds the current market value.

2.13. Work in progress and finished products

Work in progress is measured at cost, excluding administrative and selling expenses. Administrative and
selling expenses are recognised in full in the statement of financial results on a monthly basis as expenses
from ordinary activities.

Finished products reflect products finished during production that have been tested and accepted, completed
with all parts in accordance with the requirements of relevant standards. Finished products are measured at
direct actual production cost, excluding administrative and selling expenses.

2.14. Settlements with debtors and creditors

Settlements with debtors and creditors are reflecied in the financial statements in the amounts based on
coniract terms and source documents.

Accounts receivable with expired limitation period and other doubtful debts are written off under each fiability
based on stockiaking data and written substantiation, and charged to profit or loss.

Receivables and payables are classified as short-term or long-term based on the terms of existing contracts,
usual business practice and intentions of the Company.

Overdue receivables from buyers and customers which are not repaid within the time limits stipulated in
contracts and are not properly secured with relevant guarantees or otherwise are recognised exclusive of
bad debt provisions. Such provisions represent the management's conservative estimate of the part of debt
which might not be repaid. Bad debt provisions increase other expenses.

In line with the amendments to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation
No. 344 and also in accordance with RAR 21/2008 “"Changes in Accounting Estimates” approved by Order
of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 106H dated 6 October 2008, bad debt provisions as
well as other provisions refer to estimated provisions.
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2.15. Additional capital
The additional capital includes:
e increase in the cost of non-current assets identified as a result of their revaluation;
e paid-in capital;
e amembers contribution to the Company's assets.

When fixed assets are disposed of, the increase in their cost included in the additional capital is written oft
separately for each asset.

The increase in the cost of non-current assets identified as a result of their revaluation is included in the

additional capital. The increase in the cost of non-current assets equal to the decrease in their cost in the

~ previous reporting periods and charged against profit or loss as other expenses is charged against profit or
loss as other income.

The decrease in the cost of non-current assets as a result of their revaluation is charged against profit or loss
as other expenses. The decrease in the cost of non-current assets decreases the additional capital formed
due to the increase in the cost of such assets in the previous reporting periods. If the decrease in the cost of
assets exceeds the increase in their value that formed the additional capital as a result of revaluation carried
out in the previous reporting periods, the amount in excess is charged against profit or [oss as other expenses.

2.16. Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are accounted for in accordance with Russian Accounting Regulation "Accounting for
Loans and Borrowings" (RAR 15/2008) approved by order No.107n dd. 6 Oclober 2008 of the Russian
Ministry of Finance.

Loans and borrowings are subdivided into short-term (with a 12-month maturity period under the loan
agreement) and long-term (with maturity over 12 months).

Long-term indebtedness is reclassified to short-term indebtedness depending on the maturity period left.

Expenses for obtained loans and borrowings are recognised when incurred in the amount of payments due
under concluded contracts.

Outstanding interest is shown in the financial statements as long-term or short-term indebtedness based on
the maturity date set in the loan contract.

Borrowing costs are recognised as other expenses, except for such their part which is to be included into the
cost of an investment asset, unless otherwise set forth herein.

2.17. Special-purposes financing and government assistance

Government assistance is accounted for in accordance with the requirements of Russian Accounting
Regulation "Accounting for Government Assistance” (RAR 13/2000) approved by Order of the Russian
Ministry of Finance No. 92n dated 16 October 2000.

Special-purpose funds (including those received as government assistance), including resources other than
cash, are recognised if the following conditions are met:

1. |t is certain that the conditions under which these funds are allocated will be met by the Company.
This may be confirmed by concluded agreements, approved or publicly announced decisions,
feasibility studies, approved design estimate documentation etc.

2. 1t is certain that these funds will be received. This may be confirmed by budget financing targets
approved in accordance with the established procedure (for public funds), notices of disposable
funds, budget obligation limits, resource acceptance acts and other respective documents.

Special-purpose funds are recognised as special-purpose financing and accounts receivable related to these
funds,
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Analytical accounting for special-purpose financing is maintained by purposes of such funds, types of projects
and financing programmes, types of special-purpose financing (broken down by sources of funds).

Funds are written off from the special-purpose financing account on a regular basis:

1. Special-purpose funds for capital expenses - during the useful life of non-current assets subject to
depreciation or during the period of the recognition of expenses related to meeting conditions for
budget funds aliocation for the acquisition of non-current assets not subject to depreciation according
to existing rules;

2. Special-purpose funds for current expenses - in the periods of the recognition of expenses for which
funds are allocated. Special-purpose financing is recognised as deferred income when inventories
are recognised, payroll is accrued and other expenses of similar nature are incurred and later
charged to income of the reporting period when inventories are released in operation, payroll is
accrued and other expenses of similar nature are incurred.

2.18. Estimated liabilities, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

According to Russian Accounting Regulation “Estimated Liabilities, Contingent Liabilittes and Contingent
Assets” (RAR 8/2010) approved by Order of the RF Ministry of Finance dd. 13 December 2010, No. 167n,
the Company sets up the following provisions for future expenses, shown as estimated liabitities:

e provision for vacation payments (including social insurance and social security paymenfs),
s provision for scheduled settlements with contractors;
o provision for discounts, bonuses and credit notes to customers.

Information about these estimated liabilities is disclosed in section 4.20 hereof.

Provisions for various amounts are credited from account 96 “Provisions for future expenses” and debited to
the accounts used to treat production costs, sales expenses and other expenses.

Information about estimated liabilities, contingent liabiiities and contingent assets in financial statements is
reported in compliance with Russian Accounting Regulation “Estimated Liabilities, Contingent Liabilities”
(RAR 8/2010) approved by Order No. 167n dd. 13 December 2010 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian
Federation.

An estimated liability is recognised in the accounting records of the Company in the amount representing the
most reliable monetary estimate of expenses required for this liability settlement. The most refiable estimate
of expenses is an amount immediately required for liabilities performance (settlement) as of the reporting
date or for liabilities transfer to anather person as of the reporting date.

A contingent asset arises for the Company as a result of past events in its business activity, when the asset
existence with the Company as of the reporting date depends on occurrence (non-occurrence) of one or
several future uncertain events beyond the Company’s control.

A contingent liability arises for the Company as a result of past events in its business activity, when the liability
existence with the Company as of the reporting date depends on occurrence (non-occurrence) of one or
several future uncertain events beyond the Company’s control.

Contingent liabilities also include estimated liabifiies not recognised in the accounting records as of the
reporting date, due to nonfulfillment of conditions set forth in clause 5 paragraphs "6" and {or) "8" of RAR
8/2010.

A liability with uncertain value and/or maturity (hereinafter - estimated liability) may arise:
a) pursuant to laws, regulations, court decisions and agreements;

b) as a result of the entity’s actions which due to the established past practice or the entity's announcements
show other persons that the entity assumes certain liabilities and, consequently, such persons have
reasonable expectations that the entity will fulfil such fiabilities.

An estimated liability is entered in books when all of the following conditions are simultaneously met:

a) the entity has a fiability as a result of past events which fulfilment the entity cannot avoid. In case the entity
has doubts as to the existence of such liability, it recognises an estimated liability provided that based on the
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analysis of all circumstances and conditions, including expert opinions, it is more likely than not that the
liability exists;

b) economic benefits are likely fo decrease as a result of the estimated liability fulfilment;

c) the value of the estimated liability can be reliably measured.

2.19. Provisions
The Company sets up the following provisions:
e for doubtful accounts receivabie;
e for impairment of financial investments;
e inventory impairment;
s for impairment of investments in non-current assets (construction in progress and R&D).

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable decreases the amount of accounts receivable from the current
assets saction of the Balance Sheet, while provision for identified doubtful advances paid to suppliers and
contractors to create non-current assets decreases the book value of non-current asseis.

To qualify receivables as doubtful, the following conditions are taken info account;

- receivables are not secured with a pledge, collateral, surety, bank guarantee or otherwise,
- the deadiine for the fulfiiment of the obligation has not been met by the debtor,
- the debtor's bankruptcy proceedings have been instituted.

If as at the reporting date the company is certain that the overdue accounts receivable will be setiled, the
accounts receivable are not recognised as doubtful and no provision is established. The provision amount is
determined separately for each doubtful debt depending on the number of days of delay in payment: 45-80
days - 50% of the debt, over 90 days - 100% of the debt.

Provision for impairment of financial investments is established if there are indications of impairment based
on the annual impairment check carried out using the data on the cost of net assets of issuers. i the current
market value of the financial investments which impairment was covered by impairment provision increases,
the respective part of the provision is charged to other income of the current reporting period.

inventory impairment provisions decreases the book value of the respective group of inventories and is
established based on the following criteria:

- shelf jife expiration;

- rejection due to low guality,

- the remaining shelf life of 6 months or less;

- no movement within the period exceeding 1 year.

Provisions for impairment of materials are established for each batch in the amount of the total cost of
inventories. The Company establishes (adjusts) provisions for impairment of raw materials and consumables
(including transportation and procurement costs) at each reporting date of the interim financial statements. i
the current market value of the tangible assets which impairment was covered by impairment provision
increases, the respective part of the provision is charged to other income of the current reporting petiod.
Provisions for impairment of equipment to be installed in stock and capital investments in progress decrease
the book value of capital investments in progress. Impairment is checked on a quarterly basis. if the current
market value of the equipment to be instalied and capital investments in progress which impairment was
covered by impairment provision increases, the respective part of the provision is charged to other income of
the current reporting period.

Provision for impairment of R&D in progress decreases the book value of R&D in progress. Impairment is
checked on a quarterly basis. If the current market value of the R&D in progress which impairment was
covered by impairment provision increases, the respective part of the provision is charged to other income of
the current reporting period.

2.20. Leased fixed assets

Fixed assets leased by the Company are debited to account 001 “Leased fixed assets” off-balance sheet in
the amount:
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e set forth in the contract;

e of the cadastral value of land plots.

2.21. Inventories accepted for custody

Inventories accepted for custody are treated on account 002 "Inventories accepted for custody” at the value
set in the agreement. if there is no contractual vaiue, the Company keeps guantitative records and performs
measurement based on the value of similar inventories owned by the Company and market prices supported
by documents.

2.22. Written-off debt of insoivent debtors

Accounts receivable written off to losses due to the expiration of the limitation period or due to the debtor
insolvency are treated on account 007 “indebtedness of insolvent debtors written off to losses” for 5 years.

2.23. Collateral and surety received and given in security for liabilities and
payments

Collateral and surety in security for liabilities and payments received and given by the Company are
recoghised on the Company’s accounts at the time of its commencement and until it is returned.

Collateral and surety received and given in security for liabilities and payments are measured depending on
its type and terms and conditions of the underlying contracts.

Pledged property is treated on account 008 "Collateral and surety for fiabilities received” and account 009
“Collateral and surety for liabilities issued”, respectively. In addition, the pledged property value is disclosed
according to contractual ferms and conditions.

In case of the change in the primary liability, the pledged property value is to be proportionally amended,
unless otherwise provided for by the contract.

2.24, Income recognition

Income is accounted for in compliance with Russian Accounting Regulation “Accounting for Corporate
Income” (RAR 8/99) approved by order No. 32n dated 6 May 1999 by the Ministry of Finance of Russia.

Income, depending on its nature, conditions of incurrence and types of business are divided into:
s income from ordinary activities (sales proceeds),
¢ other income.

The Company's income denominated in foreign currency, provided that an advance, down payment or
prepayment has been received, is recognised as an amount in rubles calculated at the exchange rate in effect
on the date of translation of the received advance, down payment or prepayment to rubles (to the extent of
the received advance, down payment or prepayment).

Income from ordinary activities includes:

income from the sale of own-produced drugs (inciuding for export}
income from the saie of services of industrial and non-industrial nature;
income from the sale of other goods;

e income from the lease of property and property rights.
Other income includes:

2 @ @

s income from participation in other entities;

¢ inferest and other income on securities;

» proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, materials (inventories);
e proceeds from the sale of foreign currency;
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e« donated assets;

e materials and fixed assets identified based on stocktaking resulis;

e materials, fixed assets received during dismantling, disassembly of fixed assets;
o penalties, fines, forfeit penalties for breach of contract;

o receipts in payment for damages inflicted to the Company;

e proceeds arising as a consequence of extraordinary circumstances of business activity (natural
disaster, fire, accident, nationalization, etc.);

o revenue from writing-off of accounts payable and accounts receivable with expired limitation period;
= amounts paid by a debtor towards a receivabie previously written off;

» exchange differences;

e revenues of past years identified in the reporting year,

e other income.

2.25, Expense recognition

Expenses are accounted for in compliance with Russian Accounting Regulation “Accounting for Corporate
Expenses” (RAR 10/99) approved by order No. 33n dated 6 May 1999 of the Ministry of Finance of the
Russian Federation.

Expenses, depending on their nature, conditions of their incurrence and types of business are divided into:
o expenses for ordinary activities;
s other expenses.

Expenses for ordinary activities include expenses connected to income from ordinary activities listed in clause
2.24. hereof.

Other expenses include expenses related to other income listed in clause 2.24. hereof and interest for the
use of loans, property tax accrual, allocations to provisions, assets write-off, bank services, donation of assets
and social expenses.

Accounting for expenses on works and services is maintained separately for direct expenses accumulated
on the debit side of accounts 20 “Main production” and 23 "Auxiliary production” and indirect expenses
recorded on the debit side of account 25 “General production expenses”.

Administrative expenses are treated on account 26 “Administrative expenses” and reflected in line 2220
“Administrative expenses” of the Statement of Financiat Resuits.

Selling expenses are freated on account 44 “Sales expenses” and reflected in line 2210 “Selling expenses”
of the Statement of Financial Results.

Expenses in foreign currency or conventionat units the Company has paid in advance or in payment of which
the company has transferred an advance payment or a deposit are recognised in the accounting records of
the company transiated into rubles at an exchange rate effective as of the date of translation of the paid
advance, deposit or prepayment info rubles {with regard to advance, deposit, prepayment),

In accordance with cl. 18.2 of RAR ©/99 and c¢i. 21.2 of RAR 10/99 and the Company's accounting policies,
other income is presented in the Statement of Financial Results less expenses related to this income:

- exchange gains and losses;

- other income from the sale (disposal) of other assets, fixed assets and intangible assets and related other
expenses;

- other income and expenses related 1o the increase and decrease of provisions of one type {for impairment
of securities, impairment of inventories, bad debt provisions);

- income and expenses related to the purchase and sale of foreign currency;

- tare income and expenses;

- social income and expenses.
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2.26. Hedging of financial risks
Accounting regulations do not provide for a specific method to account for hedge transactions.

At the same time, in accordance with clause 7 of Russian Accounting Regulation "Corporate Accounting
Policies” (RAR 1/2008), in case accounting regulations do not specify accounting methods for certain
accounting matters, in its accounting policies an entity shall develop an accounting method based on this and
other accounting regulations, as well as international Financial Reporting Standards.

Therefore, hedge instruments and related economic events are accounted for based on IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement enacted in Russia by Orders of
the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 133n dated 26 August 2016 and No. 217n dated 28
December 2016.

2.27. Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are accounted for by the Company in compliance with Russian Accounting Regulation
“Accounting for Corporate Income Tax Settlements” (RAR 18/02) approved by order No. 144n dd. 18
November 2002 of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation.

The differences between accounting profit (loss) and taxable profit (loss) in the reporting period resulting from
the use of different rules of income and expense recognition set forth by the accounting regulations and tax
laws of the Russian Federation may be permanent and temporary.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognised on acccunt 09 "Deferred tax assets” and
account 77 “Deferred tax liabilities”.

In the balance sheet homogeneous deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not netted and presented as non-current assets and long-term liabilities, respectively.

2.28. Earnings per share

In accordance with the guidelines for disclosure of information about earnings per share approved by Order
of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation No. 26n dated 21 March 2000, a joint-stock company
should disclose information about earnings per share in two figures: basic earnings (loss) per share, which
reflects the part of earnings (loss) of the reporting period due to holders of ordinary shares, and diluted
earnings (foss) per share, which reflects the possible decrease in the basic earnings (increase in the loss)
per share in the following reporting period.

2.29. Related parties

Disclosure of related parties in financial statements shall be in compliance with Russian Accounting
Regulation “Related Parties” (RAR 11/2008) approved by order No. 48n dd. 29 April 2008 of the Ministry of
Finance of the Russian Federation.

Legal entities and (or) individuals capable of influencing the operations of the company compiling the financial
statements, or whose activity can be affected by the company compiling the financial statements (related
parties) can include:

a) a legal entity and {or) an individual and a company compiling the financial statements, which are affiliated according
to the legislation of the Russian Federation (RF Law dd. 22 March 1991, No. 948-1"0n Competition and Limitation
of Monopolistic Activity in Commodities Markets”);

b) a legal entity and/or an individual registered as an individual entrepreneur and a reporting entity involved
in joint business activities;

c) a reporting entity and a non-governmental pension fund acting for the benefit of the employees of such
entity or another entity related to the reporting entity.
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2.30, Segment information

Segment information is disclosed in financial statements according to the requirements of Russian
Accounting Regutation “Segment Information” (RAR 12/2010), as approved by Order of the Russian Ministry
of Finance No. 143n dated 8 November 2001.

As the Company does not issue publicly placed securities, it does not disclose segment information in
accordance with clause 2 of RAR 12/2010.

2.31. Subsequent events

Information about subsequent events in financial statements is reported in compliance with Russian
Accounting Regulation "Subsequent Events” (RAR 7/98) approved by order No. 56n dd. 25 November 1998
of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation.

A subsequent event is recognised as an economic event which might impact the Company’s financial position
and performance and which occurs between the reporting date and the date the financial statements for the
reporting year are signed.
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3. Opening and comparative data

The data in the Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were formed by transferring
data from the Balance Sheet for 2018,

The data in the Statement of Financial Resuits include data transferred from the respective lines of the
Statement of Financial Results for 2018.

ftems of the financial statements for the previous periods were restated in these financial statements as
follows.

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017:

As at 31 Restated figure
December 2017 | as at 31
. in the financial December 2017 | Restatement
BIS item Code statements for in the current amount Reason for restatement
the previous financial
year statemenis
Research and development In the previous period,
resulis 1120 8,953 49.722 +40,769 data were reported in
Research and development ' separate lines. In the
results puf info operation 121 ) 8,953 +8,953 | Balance Sheet for 2019
R&D and intangible assets (period of 2017}, they
acquisition in progress 1122 - 40,762 +40,769 | were included in the line
“Research and
R&D and intangible assets development resuits” with
acquisition in progress 11851 40,769 B 40,769 | the following breakdown
Fixed assets 1150 1,776,398 2,088,715 +310,317 | In the previous period,
data were reported in
" . . ) separate lines. In the
Fixed assets put info operation 1151 1,776,398 +1,776,398 Balance Sheet for 2019
in-progress capital investments ) (period of 2017}, they
in fixed assets 1182 510317 +310,317 were included in the line
In-progress capital investments “Fixed assets” with the
in fixed assets 11852 310,317 B -310,317 following breakdown
Accounts receivable (expecied
to be repaid beyond 12 months 12301 78,806 - -76,806
after the reporting date)
Accounts receivable (expected
to be repaid within 12 months 12302 1,015,289 - -1,015,289
after the reporting date) in the previous period,
buyers and customers 12303 736,677 - 736,677 | data were reporied in
separate lines. In the
. Balance Sheet for 2019
advances paid 12304 63,519 - -63,51¢ (period of 2017), they
. were included in the fine
Accounts receivable 1230 - 1,092,095 +1,082,695 “Accounts receivable” with
Accounts receivable (expected the following breakdown
to be repaid beyond 12 months 1231 - 76,808 +76,8086
after the reporting date)
Accounts receivable (expected
to be repaid within 12 months 1232 - 1,015,289 +1,015,289
after the reporting date)}
Reclassification of tax
Deferred tax assets 1180 126,100 162,006 +35,908 differences related to
accrual of provisions for
impairment of inventories,
Retained earnings (uncovered R&D, payment of bonuses
loss) 1370 320,284 356,190 +35,906 to customers from
permanent to {emporary
differences (DTA)
Accounts payable: 1520 100,162 106,333 5471
Suppliers and contractors 1521 29 953 36.134 ’ Liabilities towards
! ' supphiers with untimely
provided source
documents
Estimated liabilities 1640 167,063 160,882 -6,171
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Rassian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018:

As at 31 Restated figure
December 2018 | as at 31
. in the financial December 2018 | Restatement
B/S item Code statements for in the current amount Reason for restatement
the previous financial
year statements
Research and development In the previous period,
resulis 1120 5,791 41,040 +35,249 data were reporied in
Research and development separate lines. In the
results put intc operation 121 ) 5,791 *5791 | Batance Sheet for 2019
R&D and intangible assets (period of 2018), they
acquisifion in prograss 12z B 35,249 +35,249 | \ere included in the line
“Research and
R&D and intangibie assets development results” with
acquisition in progress 11851 35,249 i -35.249 the following breakdown
Fixed assets 1150 2,146,459 2,251,810 +105,351 | In the previous period,
data were reported in
. ; . : separate iines. In the
Fixed assets put into operation 1151 2,146,459 +2,146,459 Balance Sheet for 2019
in-progress capital investments (period of 2018), they
in fixed assels 1152 ) 105,351 +105,351 were includad in the line
In-progress capital invesiments "Fixed assets” with the
in fixed assets 11852 105,351 ) -105.351 following breakdown
Accounts receivable (expected
to be repaid heyand 12 manths 12301 5,570 - -5,570
after the reporting date)
Accounts receivable (expected
{o be repaid within 12 months 12302 799,172 - -799,172 ) .
after the reporting date) In the previous period,
data were reported in
buyers and customers 12303 701,346 - -701,346 | separate lines. In the
Balance Sheet for 2019
advances paid 12304 69,902 - 69,802 | (period of 2018}, they
were included in the line
Accounts receivable 1230 - 804,742 +804,742 | “Accounts receivable” with
: the following breakdown
Accounts receivable (expected
to be repaid beyond 12 months 1231 - 5,570 +5,670
after the reparting date}
Accounts receivable (expected
to be repaid within 12 months
after the reporting date) 1232 - 799,172 +799,172
deposit 12502 100,060 - . .
Line numbering was
deposit 1251 ; 100,000 changed
Reclassification of tax
Deferred tax assets 1180 181,155 226,694 +45,538 differences related to
accruat of provisions for
impairment of inventories,
Retained eamnings (uncovered R&D, payment of bonuses
loss) 1370 {132,826) {87 ,287) +45,538 to customers from
permanent to temparary
differences (DTA)
Accounts payable: 1520 160,670 168,321 .7 651
Suppliers and contractors ' Liabilities towards
1521 80,606 88,257 suppliers with untimely
provided source
documents
Estimated liabilities 1540 162,086 154,435 - 7,651
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thonsand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Financial Results {“for the previous year”):

ltemn of the Statement of

For 2018 in the
financial

Restated figure
for 2018 in the

Restatement

Financial Resuits Code statements for current financial amount Reason for restatement
the previous year | statements

Other income 2340 45 572 37,729 -7,843
Rebates/bonuses to
customers for the previous
reporting period earlier
accrued as an estimated
liability decrease the
estimated liabiity in the
current period

Other expenses 2350 (300,774) (292,931) +7,843

Permanent tax liabilities

(assets) 2421 49,723 40,090 6,633 Reclassification of tax
differences related to
accrual of provisions for

Changes in deferred tax impairment of inventories,

assets 2450 59,021 68,654 +9,633 R&D, payment of bonuses
to customers from
permanent to temporary

Net profit (loss) 2400 (454,595 (444,962) 9,633 | differences (DTA)
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

{(in thousand Russian Rubles unfess otherwise stated)

Information about certain types of intangible assets as at reporting dates (actual (historical) cost
without amortisation):

As at 31 As at M1 As at 31
Marrative Code bBecember December December
2019 2018 2017
1 2 3 4 5
intangible assets created by the company,
TOTAL 1110 5,394 5,407 5,407
gﬁcludmg'- 1111 3,444 3,444 3,444
atents
Trademark and service mark 1112 1,850 1,963 1,963
Including: fully amortised intangible assets,
TOTAL 1,295 1,234 1,206
inctuding:
Trademark and service mark 1113 1,295 1,234 1,206

Information about useful fives and amortisation methods:

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017
Narrative u?i?,f”l amortisation useful life amortisation useful life amortisation
{in mo?xths) method (in months} method {(in months) method
1 3 4 5 8 7
Patents 97-226 straight-line 97-226 straight-line 97-226 straight-line
Trad k and " . " . .
covion 100-122 straight-line 100-122 straight-ine 100-122 | siraightline

4.2.Research and development restilts

Information about the availability and movement of scientific and research, design and experimental and
technological expenses for 2018-2019 is presented in the below tables.

Page 25 of 62



79 J0 97 9Fed

sjeafynaceuleyd

L84S (998" 162°El (zol'e) 0Z8 {0z8) £G6'8 {res's) L29'%L SNARE meu Jo} serbojouyast
Buunioeinuen

:Buipnpou
LeL'G (9962} 82'cl (zg1'e) 0Z6 {oz8) £56'8 (vei's) L19'FL Lz [e101 - OBy
sasuadxa S8NIADE | gaguadxa Ul sasuadxe
ul pasiuBooal sesuadxa | ABUIPIO IO} | hagifiooad uj pesuBooal
anjeA 1500 1809 ayjo uy | sasuadxs u 1509 1800 anjea 1509 1809
%004 19N au} Jo Jed {EDLI0ISIH umm_zmwmw“ ummﬁ_mwmoe 8yl jo ued | [e3uO}SIH 3ooqioN | a8 jo Med 129 1103SIH
2yl jo ued | ey jo ped pasodsiq pappy
pouad &) Jo pus ay) 1y pouad ayy Joj sabueyn azak ay} jo Buuuibag ay) 1y 3pod aApeLIEN
810z 10] sasuadxa 09y 3O JUSWBAOW pue AIjiqelieAy

sjeoiyneoeuiieyd

ol6'y (r£0’8) 056'E L (880°€) LEOT (1e0') ¥2T'e 1BL'S (998'L) 1G2°EL Lizil mau 1o} saiBojouyss}
Buunjoenuen

:Buipnjous
gLe'Y (¥eo's) 058°sL (660°¢) 1202 {1e0°2) ¥Ze'T 162G (998°2) yi-7 4 LZLL 12303 - Ggy
sasuadxa SIWARDIE | gasuadxe ul sasuadxa
ui pasiubosal sasuadxe | ABUIPIC 0L | haguBoss) ul pesiuboaal
anjea 1500 1509 Jayjo ul | sesuadxs uf 1502 1509 anjea 1500 1509
yooq JoN ay} 10 Yed jeouoysyy | Posubosas ummu_mmoos 8y J0 JEg | [EOUOISIH ¥ooqiey | 8yjio ped {EOUG)SIH
1802 ]
aly) jo Jed | 8L jo ped pasodsig pappy
pouad sy} jo pua au) 1y pouad ey 104 sabueyd Jeak au3 jo Buuuibaq a4y} 1y apon SAnELIEN

{P37E675 SSTAAST30 SSA[UN SAF(Y UBISSTY PUEBSAOU} 1Y)

e

R

610z £0} sasuadxa gy JO JUSWIACW pue AyjigelieAy

6107 15qUIID3(] € PIPUS TBIA 3} A0] SJUIINU}S [BUBULY 9} G} SIJON
DSId Zejuisorg



Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

4.3.Fixed assets

information about the net book vaiue of fixed assets is shown in the Company's Balance Sheet in line 1150
“Fixed assets”.

The replacement cost of fixed assets was formed based on several revaluations. Mandatory revaluation of
fixed assets was carried out by the Company pursuant to the Resolutions of the Russian Government from
1982 to 1997.

Since 1997 the Company has not carried out other revaluations of fixed assets.

information about the replacement cost of fixed assets, accumulated depreciation and movement of fixed
assets by groups in 2018-2018 is presented below:
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Useful life and depreciation methods for 2018-2019 by groups of fixed assets:

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
. 2019 2018 2017
Narrative Useful life | Depreciatio | Useful life (in | Depreciatio | Useful life (in | Depreciatio
{in months} n methods months) n methods months} n methods
1 2 3 4 5 8 T
Buildings 1201500 | Straight | oq qsnq | straight 454 450 | StrEIONE
line line line
Sirqciures and transfer 60-600 strgighi— 80-600 strgighi— 80-600 strglghtm
devices line ling line
. . straight- siraight- ) straight-
Machinery and equipment 12-364 line 12-364 fine 12-364 line
Proportion Proportion Proporticn
Production fines 84 al to time 84 al to time B4 al to time
in service in service in service
Transport vehicles 48-180 straight- 48-180 straight- 48-180 straight-
_ ‘ line line line
Production and 36.364 straight- 36-364 straight- 126-364 straight-
maintenance {ools line line line

Change in the value of fixed assets as a result of completion, additional equipment, reconstruction and partial
liquidation in 2018-2019 is shown below:

Narrative For 2018 For 2018
4 3
o, ol catbment, resonstruction - TOTAL 45,688 315,440
Buildings 42,822 310,076
Structures and transfer devices 2,472
Machinery and equipment 354 5,364
Decrease in the cost of fixed assets as a result of partial
liquidation 333
- TOTAL:
Structures and transfer devices 333

The Company owns land plots intended for industrial facilities. The book value of these lang plots is RUB
18,430 thousand. Depreciation on the land plots is not accrued.

Information about real estate {from 1958 to 2008) without state registration:

Narrative As at Sgatzcemher As at 3123%\:ember As at 3;3&=:=,cember
1 2 3 4
Buildings 8,707 9,728 9,779
including
Refrigerating station, building 284 3,889 3,889 3,889
Structures and transfer devices 4,720 4979 7,639
TOTAL 14,436 14,707 17,418

information about temporarily shut down fixed assets, leased fixed assets, and other use of fixed assets, is
set forth below at net book value:
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Biosintez PJSC

Notes to the Finapcial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

As at 31

. As at 31 As at 31
Narrative Degg;ngber December 2018 December 2017
1 2 3 4
{ eased-out fixed assets (on-balance sheet) 40,879 11,402 107
Real estate items commissioned and
actually used, however, in the process of
state registration
Fixed assels that have been temporarily
shut down 145,171 115,839 107,111
Other use of fixed assets (real estate was
pledged to Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V.)
to secure a loan until 20/12/2023) (book 1.841,258 1,918,945 1614057
value)
Fixed assets under reconstruction 7,065

The Company transferred premises and equipment under lease contracts. The majority of these fixed assets
were transferred under a lease contract with Individuat Entrepreneur Oreshkin A.V. (RUB 10,779 thousand).

4.4.Capital investments in progress

Capital investments in progress presented in the Balance Sheet within line 1122 “R&D and intangible assets

acquisition in progress™
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Accounts receivable (advances) on R&D presented in the Balance Sheet within line 1122 “Research and
development resuits” is presented below:

As at 31/12/2018 As at 31/12/2018 As at 311272017
Marrative under a contract bad Fic_ebt under a bad figbt under a bad .ch?bt
provision contract provision contract provision
1 3 4 5 6 5 6
Shori-term accounts ) ) } ) 20 )
receivable on R&D
including
LABMGMU LLC 20

In-progress capital investments presented in the Balance Sheet within line 1152 "In-progress capital
investments in fixed assets” is presented below:

As at 31
. As at 31 As at 31
Narrative Code g;;::mber December 2018 December 2017
In-progress capital investments in fixed assets -
total 1152 125,828 105,351 310,317
including:

eguipment fo be installed and materials in 11521 57 275 33.308 76.611
stock ' ' '

reconstruction and modernisation of fixed 115292 15,455 54958 158,947
assels

in-progress acquisition of other fixed assets 11523 29,859 1,680 3,670

short-term accounts receivable on capital 11524 13.238 15.406 71 089
invesiments : ' !

Accounts receivable (advances) on capital investments presented in the Balance Sheet within line 1152 “[n-
progress capital investments in fixed assets” is presented below:

As at 31/1212019 As at 31/12/2018 As al 31/12/2017
Narrative bad debt under a bad debt under a bad debt
under a contract . . e
provision contract provision confract provision
1 3 4 5 ] 5 [
Short-term accounts
receivable on capital 15,322 {2,084) 23,000 {7,595} 72,407 {1,318)
investments
Including
Tekhno Fasad LLC 6,074 (5,089)
PVS LLC 6,608
Kord LLC 2,819
NPO Eko-intekh LLC 1,555
Pharmcontract LLC 1,568 (1,568) 1,568 {1,568)
Unica Engineering LLC 47,438
STSLLC 4,250
+.P.S. Food and Pharma 2789
Systems s.r.l.
BVT LLC 7,213
NTP Energocontrol LLC 1,250
QOther 2,502 (5186} 4,276 {958) 20,721 {1,318)
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

4.5. Long-term financial investments

All financial investments of the Company are not quoted, therefore, it is not possible to determine their current
market value.

Information about the availability and movement of long-term financial invesiments is presented below:
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

4.6. Deferred fax assets

Deferred tax assets presented in line 1180 "Deferred tax assets” of the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Ameutasal | Amewsmat | e

1 Tax loss carried forward 155,964 171,129 115,961

2 Provisions for impairment of inventories, R&D 15,325 28,407 17,206

3 iﬂ{;}f;lﬂ;:z for payment of bonuses to 11.262 17,132 18,700

4 Other deferred tax assets 4 592 10,026 10,139
TOTAL 187,142 226,694 162,006

4.7. Other non-current assets

Line 1190 “Other non-current assets” of the Balance Sheet presents investments in non-current assets
faifing to meet the requirements to the generation of indicators of the following Balance Sheet lines:

1. Line 1110 “Intangible assets”;

Line 1120 "Research and development results,

Line 1160"Income-bearing investments in tangible assets”;

2
3. Line 1150 "Fixed assets”,
4
5

Line 1170 “Financial investments”.

information about other non-current assets;

Amount
No. Narrative
31/12/2019 31/12/2018 311212017
1 Prepaid expenses for the registration of 20,506 15,596 14,366
pharmaceuticals
Certification and licensing 12 214 318
Other 403 20
TOTAL 20,921 15,809 14,704
4.8. Inventories
Line 1210 “Inventories” of the Balance Sheet accounts for the following:
Amount
No. Narrative Code
311212619 311272018 311212017
Raw materials, consumables and
1 other similar assets 1211 441,404 372,357 360,374
2 Work in progress costs 1212 62,080 71,993 63,948
3 Finished products and goods for 1213 364,919 92.226 211,430
resale
4 Prepaid expenses 1214 2,673 1,768 1,367
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated

Amount
No. Narrative Code
322019 3112/2018 311212017
TOTAL 1210 871,048 538,344 837,119

The above inventory types are shown in the Balance Sheet net of inventory provision.

Information about the movement in inventory provision is presented below:

For 2019
Provision Provision charged
No Description of inventories | At the beginning | established in to otherincome of | Atthe end of the
) {by aroups) of the year the reporting the reporting period
period period
Raw materials,
1. consumables and other 47,257 81,463 (88,466} 40,254
similar assets
2. Work in progress costs 5,165 2,057 (1,881) 5,340
3. Finished products and 18,205 4,765 (8,030) 14,941
goods for resale
TOTAL 70,627 88,285 (98,377) 60,535
For 2018
Provision Provision charged
No Description of inventories At the beginning established in to other income of | At the end of the
: {by groups) of the year the reporting the reporting period
period period
Raw materials,
1. consumables and other 20,015 94,567 (67.325) 47,257
similar assets
2. Work in progress costs 2,161 5,630 (2,626) 5,165
3. Finished products and 3,582 17,500 (2.877) 18,205
goods for resale
TOTAL 25,758 117,697 (72,828) 70,627

4.9. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are presented in the Balance Sheet less bad debt provision. Information about accounts
receivable is presented below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Biosintez PJSC

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated}

Information about overdue accounts receivable is presented below {the book value less bad debt provision).

Narrative Code As at 31/12/2019 1 As at 31/12/2018 | As at 31/12/2017
Short-ferm accounts receivable - total 1232 68,373 28,360 20,341
including
buyers and customers 12321 68,892 25,432 18,877
advances paid 12322 1,445 2,880 1,451
other debtors 12324 36 48 13
Total 68,373 28,360 20,341
information about the movement of bad debt provision is given below.
For 2019
At the :?:é;f:e d Provision Provisicn
Tvpe of asset Code beginnina of | in the charged to other | usedinthe | Atthe end of
ye theg ear 9 reportin income of the reporting the period
y pell)'iod g reporting period period
G | s
including
buyers and 12321 58,354 24,837 (79,228) (22) 4,941
customers
advances paid 12322 4,729 7,850 {11,685} (87} 917
other debtors 12324 10,467 (85) (8,265) 2,107
TOTAL 74,550 32,787 (91,018} {8,354) 7,965
For 2018
Provision Provision Provision
Type of accounts Code ﬁ; ﬂi]:nin of ie:i:ri!t;hshed charged to other used inthe | Atthe end of
receivable theg car 9 reportin income of the reporting the period
Y peprio d 8 reporting period peried
Shart-term accolnts 1232 33,287 70,216 (28,461) (492) 74,550
inciuding
buyers and 12321 20,461 67,189 {28,295) &) 58 354
customers
advances paid 12322 2,184 3,027 (482) 4,729
other debtars 12324 10,642 (166) [N 10,467
TOTAL 33,287 70,218 {28,461) {492) 74,550
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

4.10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in line 1250 “Cash and cash equivalents” of the Company's Balance Sheet
include:

el Pl Pt
1 Cash on hand 10 3 12
2 Cash on bank accounts in rubles 25,302 22,649 118,898
3 Cash on bank accounts in foreign currency 508 4,414
4 Short-term deposits 100,000
TOTAL B/S line 1250 25,312 123,160 123,322
Balance of cash and cash equivalents in
zrxs%?)tatement of Cash Flows (lines 4450, 25,312 123,160 123,322

tnformation about cash flows is disclosed in the Statement of Cash Flows.
The Statement of Cash Flows presents cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities.

Information about advances received/paid is presented in the Statement of Cash Flows as advance account
balancef/turnover.

Foreign currency purchases/sales are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross/net basis and
separately within other receipts / other payments from operating activities.

Breakdown of other receipts and other payments in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Narrative Code For 2019 For 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Other receipts 4119 92,528 217,760

Receipts from related companies (Sun Pharma

{Netherlands) B.V.) under a debt assignment contract 41191 203,971

Received fines and damages 41192 1,260 2,648

Receipts of interest under bank account contracts 41193 3,026 4742

Receipis of interest on deposits {deposit pericd up to 3

months) 41194 3,698

Receipt of subsidies from the federal budget 41195 8,397

Income tax {refund of advance payments for 2017) 41196 6,394

Result of VAT transactions (including refund from the

state budget) 41197 75,224

Other 41198 23 5

Other payments 4129 (74,997) (78,278)

Internal receivables from employees (funds provided for

current needs) 41291 (3,202) {4,324)

Paid fines and damages 41292 {6,085) (642)
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in_thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Narrative Code For 2019 For 2018

State duties 41293 (3,504) (7,672)
{ osses on foreign currency exchange transactions 41294 (2,289) (508)
Bank services 41295 (4,073; (1,200)
Social payments 41296 {308) (105)
Iai)f‘raesl ég{;;ﬂte fsor individual income tax, income tax) and 41297 (55,535) (63,827)

The Statement of Cash Flows shows net cash flows characterizing operations of the company’s counterparts,
rather than its own operations, and (or} when receipts from one person provide for payments to other persons.

The following items are presented con a net basis:

1. foreign exchange operations;

2. value added tax within receipts from buyers and customers, payments to suppliers and contractors

and payments to the RF budgetary system and recovery therefrom,

3. receipt of reimbursable expenses and their transfer {o service providers.

Presentation of value-added tax in the Statement of Cash Flows.

To present VAT in the Statement of Cash Flows on a net basis, the direct method of VAT calcuiation is used.

Line 4122 “Payments for wages and salaries” of the Statement of Cash Flows reflects amounts paid for wages
and salaries, individual income tax and social charges to non-budgetary funds:

Narrative Code For 2019 For 2018
Payments for wages and salaries, including: 4122 (546,035) (530,649)
Labour costs 41221 (358,300} (367,300)
Amount withheld from salary and paid to third parties
{alimony, writs of execution etc.) 1222 (12,065) (8,435)
Individual income tax 41223 (52,787} (53,085)
insurance contributions to non-budgetary funds 41224 (122,883) (101,829)
4.11. Other current assets
‘Line 1260 “Other current assets” of the Balance Sheet shows the following:
Amount
No. Narrative As at
As af 31/12/2018 As at 31/12/2018 21/12/2017
Menetary documents (postage stamps, envelopes,
1 employee catering cards) 44 44 37
TOTAL 44 44 37
4,12, Share capitai
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

The share capital of the Company, according to the Articles of Association, makes up RUB 286,283 as at
31/12/2019.

The Company's share capital is divided into 214,712 ordinary personal uncertificated shares, each with the
nominal value of RUB 1, and 71,571 preferred personal uncertificated shares, each with the nominat vatue
of RUB 1.

The share capital has been paid in full. No share capital changes were made in 2018 and 2019.

The Company has not announced additional issue of shares, placement of bands or other securities.

4.13.

The revaluation of non-current assets for 2018-201¢ is presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Revaluation of non-current asseis

The revaluation of non-current assets by types of non-current assets:

Narrafive Code As at 31/12/2018 | As at 31M12/2018 | As at 31/12/2017

Revaluation of non-current assets,

TOTAL 1340 289,893 297,120 298,605
including:

Revaluation of fixed assets 1341 289,893 297,120 298,605

414, Reserve capital

As at the reporting date, the Company established a reserve fund from net profit totafling RUB 14 thousand
in accordance with the law. The reserve fund is intended to cover the Company’s losses and to settle its
bonds and buy out shares if the Company has no other funds.

The reserve fund had the following structure in 2018-2016:

Narrative Code As at 31/12i2019 | As at 31112/2018 | As at 31/12/2017
Reserves in accordance with the legislation | 1360 14 14 14
TOTAL 1361 14 14 14

4.15. Retained earnings {uncovered loss)

Movement of retained earnings (uncovered loss) is disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Line 1370 “Retained earnings (uncovered loss)” includes not only retained earnings/loss, but also the
accumulation fund established pursuant to the decision of the Company's shareholders.

The General Meeting of Shareholders {minutes dated 26/06/2019) decided to cover the loss of 2018 from:

ltem Amount for 2018
Loss (454,595)
Accumulation fund 209,685
Earnings of prior years 112,084
Uncovered loss (132,826)

Restatements after which uncovered loss for 2018 amounted fo RUB 444,962 thousand are shown in the
Statement of Changes in Equity and in Section 3 of these notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in_thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

The General Meeting which is supposed to consider the issue of distribution of the 2019 profit has not been
convened as at the reporting date.

Retained earnings (uncovered loss) shown in line 1370 “Retained eamings (uncovered loss)" has the
following structure:

Narrative As at 31/12/2019 | As at 31/12/2018 As at 311212017

Retained earnings (uncovered loss), TOTAL (97,084} (87,287) 358,190
including:

Retained earnings (loss) of prior years (87,287) 147,990 96,248

Retained earnings (loss) for the reporting year (17,024) (444,962) 51,744

Accumuiation fund 7,227 209,685 208,200

4.16. Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities presented in line 1420 “Deferred tax liabilities” of the Balance Sheet are as follows:

. Amount as at Amount as at Amount as at
No. Narratlve 3111212019 31/12/2018 3111202017
1 Fixed assets 120,752 109,398 102,450
2 Intangible assets and R&D 3,937 4 575 2618
TOTAL 124,689 113,973 105,068
4.17. Loans and borrowings

The Company borrowed in the currency of the Russian Federation, rubles. Information about the Company's
outstanding loans and borrowings and their movement is as fofiows:
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Biosintez

PISC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

{in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Information on the amount of cost of borrowings included in other expenses and in the value of investment
assets is as follows:

For 2019 For 2018
No. Marrative
Amount Interest Amount Interest
1 Interest amount included in other expenses 237,378 99.6 231,466 99.8
2 Amount of capitalised interest 886 0.4 557 0.2
Amount of interest on loans received for the
purposes not related to the acquisition, erection
21. and (or) production of an investment asset that 896 0.4 597 02
was included in the cost of the investment asset

Unreceived amounts of loans (credits) as compared to the terms of loan contracts as at 31/12/2019:

Creditor: Contract Peried of loan under Amount of Actually Unreceived cash
number and the contract loan under received cash
date the confract

Sun Pharma ngtr;Lclimbered 60 months affer the

{Netherlands) date of loan 1,989,600 1,104,000 885,500

BYv. 14/12/2016/16- (tranche) use
ENO-1067

. 19-BE1O-351

osow) | dated 364 calendardays | 1,857,171} 1,100,000 757,171

24/04/2018

4.18. Accounts payable

Information about the structure of accounts payable is presented below.

Narrative Code As at 31/12/2019 | As at 31/M12/2018 | As at 31/12/2017
Other liabilities - long-ferm accounts 1450 37.912 } 3
payable
including
Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V. 1451 37,912 i )
Short-term accounts payable - total 1520 193,152 168,321 106,333
including:
suppliers and contractors 1521 158,039 88,257 36,134
advances received 1525 3,366 1,088 2,652
payables to company employees 1622 15,524 15,176 16,320
payables to state non-budgetary funds 1523 5,322 8,980 1,237
charge and tax payables 1524 10,194 12,324 13,978
including
value-added tax 15241 ) ) 2,850
other creditors 1526 707 42,486 37,003
inctuding
Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.V. 15261 ) 41,209 36,035
Total 231,064 168,321 106,333

Information about overdue accounts payable is presented below:

Page 48 of 62




Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Narrative Code As at 31/12/2019 | As at 31/12/2018 | As at 3111212017
Short-term accounts payable - total 1620 56,663 10,219 17,593
including:
suppliers and contractors 1521 56,462 9,736 17,308
advances received 1525 - - -
other creditors 1526 201 483 285
Total 56,663 10,219 17,593
4.19. Government assistance
Information about government assistance is as follows:
Narrative For 2019 For 2018
Public funds received — toial 9,397 -
including for current expenses 9,397 -
4.20. Estimated liabilities, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
information about estimated liabilities is as follows:
For 2019
Narrative At the Recognised Repaid Written off At the end
beginning amount incroase in the as surplus of the year
of the recognised present value amount
year in the for the
reporting reporting
period period
{interest}
Total 154,435 203,887 {217,887) (41,369) 99,066
including:
Estimated liabilities for
vacation payments to 45816 45638 | not applicable (48,948) (2386) 42,070
employees
Estimated Habilities for annual .
bonuses to employees 23,159 not applicable (23,159) -
Provision for settlements with i
contractors . 2,873 | not applicabie {2,182) 691
Provision for bonuses to :
customers 85,660 155,375 | not apolicabie | (166,756} (17,974) 56,305
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(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

For 2018
Narrative At the Recognised Repaid Written off At the end
beginning armount increase in the as surplus of the year
of the recognised | present value amount
year in the for the
repoiting reporting
period period
(interest)
Total 160,882 361,542 {340,530) (27,458) 154,435
including:
Estimated liabilities for
vacation payments to 46,6880 49,595 | not applicabie (50,859) - 45,616
employees
Estimated liabilities for annual )
bonuses {0 employees 20,500 23,159 not applicable - (20,500} 23,159
Provision for bonuses to .
customers 03,502 288,788 not applicable | (289,671) (6,959) 85,660

Information about the Company’s contingent liabilities and contingent assets occurred in the reporting period
is given below: As at 31/12/2019 there is a contingent liability, i.e. a claim of LuxunProject LLG for an amount
of RUB 509 thousand, that may cause a decrease in economic benefits in the future {less than 50%

likelihood).

4.21.

Hedge confracts were not concluded in 2018 and 2018.

4.22.

Leased fixed asseis

Accounting for hedge transactions

Information about the structure of leased fixed assets is presented below:

Narrative As at 31/12/2019 As at 3112/2018 As at 3111212017
Leased fixed assets - TOTAL 41,139 59,510 59,510
Land 41,138 59,510 59,610
List of land plots leased by the Company:
. Remained
No. Lﬁ.ctatmn of the land Area Cadastral value | Lessor term of lease,
P meonths
1 41 Makarenko St., 1,962 3,115 Municipal Property 465
Penza, Penza Management Committee of
Region the Administration of Penza
2 11 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
3 9 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Commitiee of
the Administration of Penza
4 10 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Commitiee of
the Administration of Penza
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" Remained
No. Liooctatlon of the land Area Cadastral value | Lessor term of lease,
P months
5 3 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Commiitee of
the Administration of Penza
6 4 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
7 5 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
8 6 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
9 7 Podlesny, Penza, a00 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
10 8 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Commitiee of
the Administration of Penza
11 12 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
12 13 Podlesny, Penza, 900 12 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
13 2 Podlesny, Penza, 16,897 14,779 Municipal Property 434
Penza Region Management Committee of
the Administration of Penza
14 4 Druzhby Si., 2,179 3,489 interregionat Territorial 450
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Management Federal
Agency in the Republic of
Mordovia, Republic of Mari £I,
Chuvash Republic and Penza
Region
15 4 Druzhby St., 4.416 6,927 Interregional Territorial 420
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Management
Federal Agency in the
Republic of Merdovia,
Republic of Mari El, Chuvash
Republic and Penza Region
16 4 Druzhby St., 2,293 3,477 Interregional Territorial 420
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Management
Federal Agency in the
Republic of Mordovia,
Republic of Mari El, Chuvash
Republic and Penza Region
17 4 Druzhby St., 2,710 4,138 Interregional Territorial 420
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Managemsnt
Federal Agency in the
Republic of Mordovia,
Republic of Mari El, Chuvash
Republic and Penza Region
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" Remained
No. Lﬁ;:tation of the land Area Cadasftral value | Lessor term of lease,
P months
18 4 Druzhby St., 1,603 2,599 interregional Territorial 420
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Management
Federal Agency in the
Republic of Mordovia,
Repubiic of Mari El, Chuvash
Republic and Penza Region
19 4 Druzhby St., 1,402 2,483 Interregional Tetritorial 420
Penza, Penza Administration of the State
Region Property Management
Federal Agency in the
Republic of Mordovia,
Republic of Mari El, Chuvash
Republic and Penza Region
TOTAL 43,362 41,139

Leased land plots are presented in the financial statements at cadastral value.

The moverment of eased fixed assets for 2019:

Narrative At the Changes for the period At the end of
beginning of | Added/disposed | Change in | the period
the year value

Legsed f_lxe_d assets, TOTAL 59.510 (18,371) 41,139

including:

Land 59,510 (18,371) 41,139

The movement of leased fixed assets for 2018:

information about off-balance sheet inveniories is as follows.

Narrative At the Changes for the period At the end of
beginning of Added/disposed | Change in | the peried
the year value

Le;sed flxeg assets, TOTAL 59,510 59,510

including:

Land 59,510 59,510

4,23, Off-baiance sheet inventories

Narrative As at 31/12/2019 As at 31/12/2018 As at 31/12/2017
Inventories accepted for custody
284 17,299 4 811
inventories accepted for processing
1,082 1,128 1,773
TOTAL 1,366 18,427 6,584

4.24.

Coflaterai and surety issued and received

Collateral and surety in security for liabilities and payments, received and issued, is presented below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

Narrative As at 31/12/20198 As at 31/12/2018 As at 31/12/2097
Colateral and surety received, total: 19,918 2 34
including surety 2 2 34
bank guaraniees 19,916

Collateral and surety issued, total: 1,984,981 1,984,981 2,014,847

including pledge of property and 1,084,981 1,084,981 2,014,847
propenty rights T e T

including the cost of pledged fixed 1,062,209 1,962,299 1,097,165

assets (pledge value)

5. Notes to the Statement of Financial Resulis

5.1.Income from ordinary activities

The income from the sale of goods, products, works, services (net of VAT and other similar payments) shown
in line 2410 of the Statement of Financial Results, is as follows:

Narrative Code For 2019 For 2018
Sale of pharmaceuticals for export 2111 492,303 464,092
Sale of pharmaceuticals on the domestic 2111 1,602,835 1,589 424
market
Other sales 2112 29,418 31,778
Tofal revenue 2110 2,424,556 2,085,294
5.2. Expenses for ordinary activities
The cost of sales presented in line 2120 of the Statement of Financial Results is as follows:
Narrative Code For 2018 For 2018
Sale of pharmaceuticals for export 2121 355,766 407,570
Sale of pharmaceuticals on the domestic 2121 1,372,730 1,253 565
market
Other sales 2122 17577 17,062
Total cost of sales 2120 1,746,073 1,678,197
The selling expenses in line 2210 of the Statement of Financial Results are as follows:
Narrative For 2019 For 2018
Maintenance of the executive office 11,914 13,010
Transportation of products to destination 26,207 31,901
Expenses of warehouses of finished products 27,497 28,475
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Non-capital expenses related to the improvement of
technology and organisation of work 37,280 45,113
Expenses for the use of intellectual property (royalty) 1,091 2,027
Advertising 3,447 5,571
Distribution costs related to public catering - 3,965
Other selling expenses 8,022 9,389
Total selling expenses 115,458 137,451
The adminisirative expenses in line 2220 of the Statement of Financial Results are as follows:
Narrative For 2019 For 2018
Material costs 34,358 37433
Payrolt costs 132,897 138,305
Social charges 33,743 33,079
Depreciation 12,883 8,183
Other 87,490 70,666
Total administrative expenses 281,371 287,666
Expenses for ordinary activities by cost item are as follows:
Narrative For 2019 For 2018
Material costs 1,682,824 1,188,144
Payroll costs 423,702 446,976
insurance contributions to non-budgetary funds 114,217 112,585
Depreciation 154,213 136,594
Cther expenses 127,608 125,683
including
Repair of fixed assets 3,630 10350
representation expenses 70 89
Total by cost items 2,402,564 2,009,882
Changes in inventories and expenses (+ increase, - (259,662) 93,432
decrease)
Total expenses for ordinary activities 2,142,902 2,103,314

Page 54 of 62




Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

5.3.0ther income and expenses

The other income and expenses for 2018 — 2019 shown in lines 2340 and 2350 of the Statement of Financial
Results, respectively, are as follows:

No. Narrative For 2019 For 2018

1 Other income 136,210 37,729
1.1. Property sale: 6,132 2858
1.1.1. Sale of raw matenals and consumables 4,666 2,858
1.1.2. Sale of fixed assets 1,466

1.2, Accrual (reversal) of provisions 100,356 21,290
1.3. Exchange differences 12,335 -
1.4, Donated property 3 82
1.5. Surpluses identified during stockiaking 309 71
1.6. Overdue accounis payable 243 6,665
1.7. Subsidies 9,397 -
1.8. Other income 7,435 6,763
2 Other expenses (138,200) {292,931
2.1. Foreign currency safe and purchase {2,289) (508)
2.2. Accrual (reversal) of provisions (49 2220 (116,807}
2.3. Exchange difierences - {7,020)
2.4, Donated property, services - (5,462)
25 Services of credit institutions (3,689) (2,547}
2.6. Other expenses {83,000) {160,787)
21| e e o o oo BT | pasms| (13259
262, social expenses (6,415) (6,122)
2.8.3. property tax (27,027) (26,426)
2.6.4, bonuses and discounts fo customers (8,923) (106,708)
2.6.5. other expenses (17,649) (8,274)

The other income and expenses shown in lines 2340 and 2350 of the Statement of Financial Results on a
net basis are as follows:

For 2019

Narrative Income Expenses Total
Currency sale 517,408 (519,697) {2,289)
Sale of fixed assets 1,850 (384) 1,466
Sale of raw materials and consumables 12,469 (7,803) 4,666
Result of fixed asset write-off 4,210 {16,039) {11,829)
Tare income and expenses 1,312 (1,161) 151
Exchange differences 20,404 (8,069) 12,335
Accry';ﬂ {reversal) of inventory impairment 168,008 (172,410) 4,312)
provisions
Accrual (reversal) of bad debt provisions 91,018 (27,797) 63,221
Accrual (reversal) of provision for bonuses to 124,207 (155,375) (31,168)
cusiomers
Special-purpose expenses 37 (6.452) {6,415)
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For 2018

Narrative Income Expenses Total
Currency sale 127,146 (127,654) (508)
Sale of raw materiais and consumables 7,076 (4,218) 2,858
Result of fixed asset write-off 726 {108) 618
Tare income and expenses 1,105 {37 1,068
Exchange differences 10,286 (17,306) (7,020)
Accrygl (reversal) of inventory impairment 72,828 (117.698) (44,870)
provisions
Accrual {reversal} of bad debt provisions 28,295 {84,887} (56,592)
Accrual (reversal) of provision for bonuses to 296,630 (288.786) 7,842
customers
Special-purpose expenses 241 (6,363) {6,122)

5.4.Income tax

Income tax for tax purposes (current income tax — line 2410 of the Statement of Financial Results) is
determined on the basis of provisional income tax expense/benefit adjusted for permanent tax liabilities,
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities pertaining fo the reporting period.

The data used to calculate the current incorne tax are presenied below:

No. Narrative For 2019 For 2018
1. Provisicnal income tax expense (benefit) 9,701 (100,003)
2. Permanent tax liability 55,851 40,080
3. Deferred tax asset {DTA) (39,552) 68,654
4. Deferred tax liability ({DTL) (10,698) (8,858)
Current income tax (current tax loss) 15,102 {116)*

* Income tax refundable from the budget as per the amended tax return for 2017 is
presented in line 2460 of the Statement of Financial Results together with tax penalties.

Permanent and temporary differences that arose in the reporting period and entailed adjustment of provisional
income tax expense/benefit are:

No. Narrative For 2019 For 2018
1. Permanent differences, including: 278,253 200,450
1.1, loan interest in excess of norms 188,456 174,538
1.2 social expenses 5514 5,304
1.3. write-off of inventories and other assets 81,164 12,051
1.4 donated property, services 2,839 5,462
1.5, other 180 3,006
2. Temporary (taxable) differences, including: (53,492) (44,288)
2.1 fixed assets (56,5680) (34,507)
2.2, Intangible assets, R&D 3,188 (9,782)
3. Temporary (deductible) differences, including: (197,760) 343,270
31 ’:Ja:sleo)ss carried forward (recognised to decrease the tax (75.,825) 205,082
32 223?:;tgresversal) of provision for settiements with 1120 1,480
3.3 accrual {reversal) of bad debt provision (17,683) 8,646
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34 ;c;:[r)uai (reversal) of provision for impairment of inventories, (65,410) 40323
35 accrual (reversal) of prevision for bonuses to customers (29,355} 7,842
3.6. additional loan expenses (10,604) (10,604)
3.7. other {3) 501

5.5.Disclosure of information about earnings per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the reporting period:

For 2019 For 2018
214,712 214,712

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings (loss) of the reporting period are calculated by decreasing (increasing) earnings (loss) of
the reporting period left after tax and other mandatory payments to the state budget and non-budgetary funds
by the amount of dividends on preferred shares accrued to their holders for the reporting period.

RBasic earnings (loss) per share is calculated as the ratio of the basic earnings (loss) of the reporting period
to the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the reporting period:

Narrative 2019 2018

Earnings (loss) of the reporting period left after tax and other mandatory
payments, RUB

(17,024,102.46) | (444,962,115.50)

Dividends on preferred shares accrued to their holders for the reporting

period

Basic earnings {loss) of the reporting period, RUB (17,024,102.46) | (444,962,115.50)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 214,712 214,712
Basic earnings (loss) per one share, RUB _ (79.29) (2,072.37}

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Diluted earnings (loss) per share shows the greatest possible decrease in earnings (increase of loss) per one
ordinary share of the joint-stock company.

Narrative 2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 214,712 214712
Maximum weighted average number of shares after conversion 286,283 286,283
Adjusted basic earnings (loss), RUB (17,024,102.46) | (444,962,115.50)
Diluted earnings (loss) per one share, RUB (59.47) {1,554.27)

6. Other notes

6.1.Information about discontinued operations

The Company did not make any decisions to discontinue operations in 2019.

6.2. Related parties
The list of related parties for 2018-2019 and relevant information are given below:
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Nature of relationship with related parties

Group Nature of relationship®
Changes in related parties
Name of related party for 2019 for 2018

Predominant (participating} companies
Sun Pharma (Netherlands) B.Y. B B
Key management:
Members of the Board of Directors
Arun Kumar Rajput - chairman B B
Arvind Kumar B B
Vivek Mittal B B
Arvind Abrol B B
Alexander Veloshinov B B
General Director R B
Dmitry Beldov
Other related parties
SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES B B
LIMITED, India
J3C Ranbaxy, Moscow c c

A* - a legal entity (individual) is under controi or significant influence of the Company
B* - a legal entity (individual) has control or significant influence over the Company

C* - a legal entity (individual) and the Company are under controt or significant influence (direct or indirect)
of one and the same legal and (or) individual (group of individuals)

The Company belongs to SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

The full list of related parties as at 31 March 2019 is presented in the consoiidated financial statements of the
group at the company’s website

http:/iwww.sunpharma.com/sites/default/filesfannual/Consolidated%20F inancial%20Statements %20-
AR%20FY19.pdf

There were no material changes in the group structure as at 31 December 2019

Diip Shantilal Shanghvi, who heads the parent company of SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES
LIMITED and owns over 25% of this company, is the Company's ultimate beneficiary.

Related party transactions for 2018-2019:
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Biosintez PJSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

(in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

6.3.Remuneration to key management personnel

Information about remuneration accrued for key management of the Company™

No. Narrative For 2018 For 2018

Shori-term remunerations — the amounts te be paid during the reporting
period, and 12 months after the reporting date (payrolt for the reporting
period, taxes and other mandatory payments to the corresponding
1 budgets and non-budgetary funds accrued thereon, annual paid leave 33,611 27,867
for work in the reporting period, payment for medical treatment, heaith
services, ufiliies and other payments to the benefit of the key
management personnel)

TOTAL 33,611 27,867

* |n accordance with ¢l 11 of RAR 11/2008 “Information about Related Parties”, key management personnel shall be
understood to mean managers (General Director, other persons acting as a sole executive body of the entity), their
deputies, members of the collegiate executive body, members of the Board of Directors {(Supervisory Council) or other
collegiate management bodies and other officials vested with authorities and responsibilities related to planning,
management and control over the entity.

The list of members of the Board of Directors is provided in the General information section of the notes.
No loans were granted to members of the Board of Directors by the Company.

Remuneration to members of the internal audit committee for 2019 amounted to RUB 1,004 thousand.
Remunerafion to the internal auditor for 2018 amounted to RUB 90 thousand. (payment nature - salary for
the reporting period, related taxes and other mandatory payments to the respective budgets and non-
budgetary funds, annual paid leave for work in the reporting period, business travel expenses).

6.4.Subsequent events

A subsequent event is recognised as an economic event which might impact the Company’s financial position
and performance and which occurs between the reporting date and the date of the financial statements for
the reporting year.

There were no identified material events after the reporting date and before the date of the financial
statements, which could have affected the financial position or financial performance of the Company.

6.5. Tax legislation

Russian tax, foreign exchange and customs laws allow for different interpretation and are subject to frequent
changes. Interpretation of this legislation by the management of the Company with regard to operations and
activity of the Company can be contested by the corresponding regional or federal authorities. Recent events
that occurred in the Russian Federation indicate that the tax authorities can take a tougher line towards
interpretation of legislation and review of tax calculations, and there is a certain probability that operations
that have arisen no doubt in the past can be contested at present. Tax audits may cover three calendar years
preceding the year when the particular audit is held. Earlier periods may also be subject to audit, if required.

The Company's management believes that as of 31 December 2019 their interpretation of the relevant
legislation was appropriate, and the Company's financial position given the applicable tax, foreign exchange
and customs legislative environment is highly likely to be sustained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

{in thousand Russian Rubles unless otherwise stated)

General Director of Biosintez PJSC D.V. Boldov

Chief Accountant at Biosintez PJSC T.Y. Tefanova

20 March 2020
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